
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Susan Gardner, Democratic Services (01254) 380184 
Email:  susan.gardner@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Monday, 3 August 2015 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Friday, 24 July 2015 at 2.30 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Kerry Molineux (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Jenny Nedwell, Kath Pratt, Judith Addison, Eamonn Higgins and Bernadette Parkinson 
 
Co-optees:  Jean Battle and Dave Parkins 
 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Principles 
 
The Committee will exercise the following principles when conducting its business:- 
 
1.  At all times adhere to the code of conduct for members and the protocol for member/officer  
     relations. 
2.  To treat people fairly and with respect and be constructive, especially when challenging  
     people. 
3.  To seek consensus on the best solutions irrespective of party politics. 
4.  To be open and transparent. 
5.  To look for continuous improvement rather than blame. 
6.  To be inclusive and democratic. 
7.  To communicate well and constantly. 
8.  To make best use of available resources. 
9.  To ensure equality of opportunity. 
10.To allow portfolio holders when present to deal with questions and facilitate officer input  
     when under scrutiny. 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015-2016 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
To receive the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on Wednesday, 25th March 2015 for approval as a correct 
record. 
 
Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a   
  correct record. 
 

4.   Appointment of Co-optees  (Pages 9 - 12) 
 
To appoint co-opted Members on to the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for the Municipal Year 2015/16. 

Recommended (1) That Honorary Aldermen Jean Battle and Dave 
Parkins be appointed co-opted Members to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for the Municipal Year 2015/16; and, 

 (2) That it be noted that one vacant position for a Co-
opted Member to the Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee remains (1 
Conservative nominee) and that the Committee allow 
the position to be filled later in the year should a 
nomination come forward.  

 

5.   Work Programme 2015/16  (Pages 13 - 18) 
 
To give consideration to and approve the 2015/16 Work Programme for the Communities 
and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Recommended (1) That the draft 2015/16 Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme contained in 
the Appendix to the report be considered and 
approved;  and,  

 (2) That the approved 2015/16 Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
be submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet for 
comment.  



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

6.   Scaitcliffe House - Signing In/Out Procedure  (Pages 19 - 38) 
 
For the Committee to consider the current arrangements for Councillors signing into 
Council buildings (mainly Scaitcliffe House) and the reasoning behind the current 
arrangements. 
 

Recommended (1) That the Committee note the report; and 

 (2) That the Committee considers the appropriateness of 
the current system and makes recommendations on 
possible improvements to the system. 

 

7.   Scrutiny Panel (Reducing Poverty) Update  (Pages 39 - 42) 
 
To update the Committee on the outcome of the report submitted to Cabinet by the 
Reducing Poverty Panel, appointed by this Committee. 
 

Recommended (1) That the Committee note the report; and  

 (2) That the Committee note the positive outcomes 
associated with the Task and Finish Scrutiny Model, 
and considers a potential topic for this year for the 
formation of a Scrutiny Panel. 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



251 

 

C O M M U N I T I E S  A N D  W E L L B E I N G  
O V E R V I E W  A N D  S C R U T I N Y  C O M M I T T E E  

Wednesday, 23rd March 2015 

 
Present: Councillor Kerry Molineux (in the Chair); Councillors Wendy Dwyer, Dave 

Parkins and Kath Pratt 
  
  
In Attendance: Neil Mark – Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service 
  Gary Monk – Resident 
  Councillor Pam Barton – Portfolio for Health and Communities 
  Vickie Barritt – Policy Officer 

 _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
517 Apology for Absence 
 

An apology for absence was submitted from Councillors June Harrison and Joyce 
Plummer. 
 
 

518 Substitution 
 

There were no substitutions. 
 
 

519 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
  
 There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
  
  
520 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 28th January 2015 were submitted for approval as a correct record.   
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct record. 
 
 

521 Fire Cover Review 
 

Neil Mark, Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service, gave a presentation on the review of the 
service.  He gave details of how the review had considered the changing requirements of the 
Fire Service and those that had been implemented since which had managed to make the 
savings required whilst still providing an efficient service.  He provided details of the financial 
savings and supporting statistical information and referred to key performance indicators which 
had shown a reduction in the number of total incidents since 2013/14.  He pointed out that the 
Fire Service now focussed on fire safety prevention which had impacted on the requirements 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



252 

 

of the Fire Service and showed the risk map for Hyndburn, explaining how this had changed 
since the review and gave a summary of the impact on critical response standards.   
 
Gary Monk, resident and former Fire Station Manager, questioned the statistical information 
provided in the presentation.  He acknowledged the theory set out in the statistical information 
provided but pointed out that the practicality of matters did not always show the true picture.  
He referred to a number of issues including the following issues: 
 
- He asked if incidents were still recorded in the statistics even when Hyndburn pumps were 

not present at the incident.  Neil Mark indicated that he was unsure and would provide a 
response for a future Committee. 

- Questioned the exact number of posts within the Fire Service that were lost due to the 
review and the effect that this had had on the service.  

 Councillor Parkins referred to the new procedure put into place due to reductions in crew 
numbers and if this had been risk assessed accordingly. 

- Questioned a number of issues outlined in the presentation and indicated that the statistical 
information may not show the true impact of the practicalities of the review.   
 

 Neil Mark invited Committee members to visit the Fire Station to see how the Fire Service 
operated and proposed that a future meeting was held at the Fire Station to provide the 
Members with an opportunity to be given responses to the issues raised by Mr. Monk. 

Resolved  (1) That the report be noted; and 

  (2)  That a future Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
 Scrutiny Committee be held at Accrington Fire Station. 

 
522 Work Programme 2015/16 Planning 
 
 The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted the draft work programme for 2015/16 for 
 consideration by Members of the Committee.   Reference was made to the number of town 
 centre  night clubs and pubs opening and to the opening times that the premises were 
 requesting a licence to.  Homelessness in the town centre was also an item which was 
 proposed for inclusion in the work programme.  
 

Resolved - That the report be noted and Members’ suggestions be 
incorporated into the work programme. 

 
 
523 Lancashire Health Scrutiny 

 
The Chair reported on the Lancashire Health Scrutiny work programme for 2014/15 and plans 

 for the 2015/16 work programme. She suggested that Members contacted her with ideas 
 that she could take back for consideration within their plans for her to take back to Lancashire 
 County Council 
 
 Resolved -   That the report be noted. 
 
   
   
   

 

Page 6



253 

 

 
 
 
 

Signed: ………………………………………………. 
 

Date: ………………………………………………………. 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

DATE: 21st July 2015; 24th July 2015 

REPORT OF: Cllr Noordad Aziz and Cllr Kerry Molineux, Chairs of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Appointment of Co-opted Members 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To appoint Co-opted Members on to the Overview and Scrutiny Committees for 

2015/16. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Honorary Alderman Ian Ormerod be appointed as a Co-opted Member to the 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
2.2 That Honorary Alderman Dave Parkins and Honorary Alderman Jean Battle be 

appointed as Co-opted Members of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
2.3 That it be noted that 3 vacant positions for Co-opted Members remain (1 Labour and 2 

Conservative nominees) and that the Committee allows these positions to be filled later 
in the year should nominations come forward. 

 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 In 2012/13, the Council resolved to add Co-opted Members to the Scrutiny 

Committees. These Co-opted members would be former Councillors and Honorary 
Alderman, and would have the same rights as Committee members except for voting 
rights. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4.



 

3.2 At the Council Meeting on 21st May 2015, Council moved that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees appoint their own Co-optees for 2015/16 in consultation with the 
Party Leaders. 

 
3.3 All former Co-optees from the previous 2 years were contacted, with 2 responses, and 

it is suggested that those members are once again co-opted on to the Committees. In 
addition, Honorary Alderman Dave Parkins was nominated by the Leader of the 
Council.  

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 The main party leaders were consulted with. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

NA 

Assessment of risk 
 

NA 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

NA 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes from Council on 21st May 2015 . 

http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=139&Ver=4  
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 

Page 10

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=139&Ver=4


 

8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5 
 

 AGENDA ITEM X           

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Report 

DATE: 21st July 2015; 24th July 2015 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Noordad Aziz, Chair of the Resources 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee; Councillor Kerry 
Molineux, Chair of the Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2015/16 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No  

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report asks the Committees to give consideration to and approve the work 

programme for 2015/16 of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committees consider the draft work programmes contained in the Appendix to 

this report and approves their work programmes for 2015/16. 
 
2.2 The work programme of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee be submitted to the 
next meeting of Cabinet for comment. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 At the beginning of each municipal year, the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees each agree a work programme for the new Municipal Year. 
 
3.2 The process for agreeing the work programme is set out in Overview and Scrutiny 

procedure rule C6(a) as follows; 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5.



Page 2 of 5 
 

 
“A draft work programme will be submitted for comment to the first appropriate meeting 
of the Cabinet at the beginning of each new Municipal Year and the draft work 
programme for each overview and scrutiny committee will then be submitted to the 
next following meeting of that committee (together with any comments or 
recommendations from the Cabinet) for approval”. 

 
3.3 Consultation has been held with the Chairs and Vice Chairs of each committee and via 

a meeting with the Cabinet. Also, every Councillor and Head of Service have been 
requested to submit their suggestions for Overview and Scrutiny Items. This generated 
several topics which have been added to the work programme. 

 
3.4 We have sought to provisionally allocate items to specific meetings.  These may be 

subject to change during the year, particularly where they involve the attendance of 
external and partner organisations. When agreed, a copy of the work programme will 
be sent to all service managers and to all Cabinet members to give advanced notice 
that Scrutiny will be considering an item in their portfolio. 

 
3.5 Additional items may be added to the work programme as the year progresses. 
 
3.6 The draft work programmes for both committees can be seen in appendix 1.  
 
3.7 Appendix 2 is attached for information, and contains the criteria for selecting work 

programme items, which were considered when producing the draft work programme.  
 
3.8 The Committees are asked to agree to a draft work programme to be submitted to 

Cabinet. 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 The Committees could agree alternate work programmes. This has been rejected as 

the draft programmes have been developed from in depth consultation.  
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 As discussed in paragraph 3.3. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
mainstreaming) 
 

Not applicable 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Page 14



Page 3 of 5 
 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
 None applicable to this report 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
  

Page 15

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 

4. Work Programmes 2015/16 

 
  

Draft Resources Work Programme 2015/16 
 

 
Meeting Date 
 

 
Work Topics (Please note from the July meeting, the Resources Committee will 
review one department business plan update at each meeting. There will be no 
Business Plans Scrutiny Meeting in November)  

 
21

nd
  July 

- Procurement – Appointment of Procurement Champion / Appointment of 

members to Procurement Scrutiny Panel 

- Procurement of IT Software – Scott Gardner / Gareth Molineux – OS Officer 

research background (if feasible for first meeting) 

- Policy Business Plan – Mike Walker / Cllr Miles Parkinson 

 

 
8

th
  Sept 

 
- Apprenticeships – How HBC supports apprenticeship opportunities locally – 

Kirsten Burnett / Cllr Gareth Molineux 

- Welfare Reform – Implications on Council Resources – Pauline Duckworth / 

Cllr Gareth Molineux 

- HR Business Plan/People Strategy – Kirsten Burnett 

 

 
27

th
  October 

- HMR West Accrington – Recovery of loans – Mark Hoyle / Cllr Cleary 

- Selective Licensing Update and Scope for expanding the scheme– Mark 

Hoyle / Cllr Cleary 

- Waste Services Business Plan – Steve Riley / Cllr Cox 

- Medium Terms Financial Strategy – Mitigating the Risks – Joe McIntyre / Cllr 

Gareth Molineux 

 

 
15th December 

- Scrutiny Panel (Procurement) Update report – Chair of Scrutiny Panel 

- Spending Review – Implications for Hyndburn 

- Planning and Transportation Business Plan – Simon Prideaux / Cllr Miles 

Parkinson 

- Taxi Licensing (TBC) 

 

 
26th January 

- Audit Business Plan – Mark Beard / Cllr Gareth Molineux 

- Benefits and Revenues Business Plan – Pauline Duckworth / Cllr Gareth 

Molineux 

- Space for Deferred items 

 
 

 

 
16

th
 February  

 
Budget – Joe McIntyre/Cllr Gareth Molineux  
 
 

 
22nd March  

 
- Hyndburn Leisure Trust (Update on the outcome of capital expenditure and the 

effect on the Trust’s budget) – Steve Tanti / Cllr Moss 

- Environmental Health Business Plan – Tony Akrigg / Cllr Paul Cox 

-  

 

 

Page 16



Page 5 of 5 
 

 Draft Communities and Wellbeing Work Programme 2014/15 
 

 
Meeting date 

 
Work topics 

24
rd

 July - Scaticliffe House – Procedure for Employees, Councillors and Guests 

Signing in to the building 

- Scrutiny Panel (Poverty) Update - Chair 

 

 
18

th
 September 

- Meeting to be held at Accrington Fire Station (Subject to Confirmation) 

- Fire Service Update 

- Homelessness – Fiona Goodfellow / Cllr Cleary 

-  

-  

 
30

th
 October 

- Access to Mental Health Services – External to be identified / Cllr Dad 

- Inclusive Services – LCC contact to be identified / Cllr Dad 

 
 
 

 
11

th
 December 

- Health Access Centre (Accrington Victoria Hospital) Update – External TBC / Rob 

Grigorjevs / Cllr Dad 

- Health and Planning Policy 

 
 

 
22

nd
 January 

- Community Safety Plan – Vickie Barritt / External TBC / Cllr Dad 

- Community Safety (Topic to be confirmed) – Vickie Barritt / External TBC / Cllr 

Dad 

 
 

18
th
  March  - Unauthorised traveller sites - TBC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 24 July 2015 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Gareth Molineux - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Procedure for Councillors signing in to Council 
Buildings 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 For the Committee to consider the current arrangements for Councillors signing into 

Council buildings (mainly Scaitcliffe House) and the reasoning behind the current 
arrangements. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committee note the report; and 
 
2.2 That the Committee considers the appropriateness of the current system and makes 

recommendations on possible improvements to the system. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Each year, every Councillor and Service Head is asked to put forward items they would 

like Scrutiny to consider that year. The process for Councillors signing into Scaitcliffe 
House was submitted by 2 Councillors and therefore it was agreed that this  
would be added to the work programme. 

 
3.2 All Councillors and Members of the Public are required to sign in and out as a visitor 

when they enter and leave a Council building. Officers are not required to sign in and 
out of the building in which they usually work, as clocking in and out records their entry 
and exit from the building generally speaking. However, Council officers are required to 
sign in as visitors when they frequent other Council buildings. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6.



 

3.3 The Scrutiny Officer requested details on the current system and the reasoning behind 
it. The Safety and Emergency Planning Officer provided the following: 

 
3.4 The requirements for visitors to be accounted for falls in to two camps, 1 Health & 

Safety / Fire Safety Precautions and 2 Security issues. 
 
3.5 Health & Safety / Fire Safety Precautions 
 

Have a duty to achieve compliance with the following legislation;  

 The Health and Safety at Work Etc. Act 1974  

 The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999  

 The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document B as amended  

 The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005  

 The Health and Safety( Safety Signs and Signals ) Regulations 1996 

 HBC Safety Policies and Procedures  
 
3.6 The purpose of the policy is to ensure that Hyndburn Borough Council achieve and 

maintain full compliance with fire legislation and eliminate as far as is reasonably 
practicable the risk of injury to relevant persons from fire. This includes employees, 
other persons who may be affected by the companies work activities, or any person 
using its premises.  

 
3.7 Fire is a significant hazard to the safety of both buildings and their occupants. All 

buildings and human activity represent some form of fire hazard and risk.  
 
3.8 During an Evacuation the Fire Marshals will conduct a sweep of their area of work 

ensuring that all known occupants are evacuated from the building then collect the 
visitors book and cross reference those signed in against the Roll Call at the Muster 
Point. 

 
3.9 During a Fire Evacuation there is a degree of local knowledge of whom is in the 

building is applied by the Fire Marshals and the Staff at the Muster Point in order to 
ascertain if all person present are accounted for. Where this local knowledge is often 
compromised is when we have people in the building who are not regular to the 
building on a day to day basis such as contractors, visitors and Councillors. Visitors 
also include HBC staff from other buildings. 

 
3.10 Therefore from a fire evacuation purpose it is critical that we have a list of those in the 

building. If local knowledge is questioned we can indeed print out a roll call sheet of 
those who have swiped using their access card, and the visitors book is used for all 
other non HBC staff. 

  
3.11 Security 
 
3.12 Security issues are not often publicised as much as say Fire Safety or Health and 

Safety because we don’t want to cause undue alarm or stress for staff within HBC 
Premises. 

 

Page 20



 

3.13 The UK Security Threat level is at “Severe” meaning that an attack is highly likely (see  
the threat levels below): 
 
 LOW means an attack is unlikely. 
 MODERATE means an attack is possible, but not likely 
 SUBSTANTIAL means an attack is a strong possibility 
 SEVERE means an attack is highly likely 
 CRITICAL means an attack is expected imminently  

 
3.14 As a local Government Authority and Category 1 Responder our staff and buildings are 

at greater risk from a terrorist attack than say other office based organisations. Under 
the Government CONTEST and PREVENT strategies we are advised to ensure our 
offices and buildings are secure and not made vulnerable to attack from organised 
terrorist groups or from the opportunist / lone wolf activist. As such organisations that 
do not have adequate access control measures will find themselves at a greater risk. 

 
3.15 Other similar organisations have been scrutinised by the Governing Bodies such at the 

MI5 and Counter Terrorist Service and their access records checked as part of 
intelligence gathering etc. It is therefore essential that we have records for all who 
enter and leave HBC premises dates and time. Visitors to building are often not 
subjected to any vetting process. 

 
3.16 Hyndburn Borough Council’s Fire Safety Policy and Emergency Evacuation Procedure 

is attached as appendix 1. 
 
3.17 To assist Members in their discussion on this item, the Scrutiny Officer contacted a few 

other local authorities to discuss their procedure. Contact was made with the 
Democratic Services Manager (Or equivalent) at several Councils.  

 
3.18 At the time of writing this report, not all responses had been received therefore the 

Overview and Scrutiny Officer will provide a verbal update on this at the meeting. 
 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Safety and Emergency Planning Officer, Democratic Services Managers at several 

other Councils. 
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including None 

Page 21



 

any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

The current system is in place to reduce risk 
from fire and security threats 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None. 
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 
 

Page 22

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 
 
 
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 

FIRE SAFETY POLICY AND 
EMERGENCY EVACUATION 

PROCEDURE 

Page 23



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 
HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT 

 
CONTENTS 

 
SECTION PAGE 
 
Introduction  3 
 
Policy  4 
 
Responsibilities  4 
 
Fire and Emergency Procedures  5 
 
General Advice on Explosives / Incendiary Devices  8 
 
Bomb Threat Checklist  13 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 24



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 
FIRE SAFETY POLICY AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 
CONTENTS 
 
Introduction 
Objectives 
Application 
Policy 
Responsibilities 
Fire and Emergency Procedures 
 
INTRODUCTION 
For the majority of organisation, fire has the potential to cause fatalities on a scale unmatched by any 
other workplace hazard. Disasters such as those that occurred at Woolworths in Manchester, Bradford 
City football ground and Kings Cross tube station have provided tragic reminders of this. 
 
What may not be so readily appreciated is the enormous economic losses that invariably result. Fire 
causes damage to property, equipment, the environment, interrupts business and reduces profits. Both 
the insured and the uninsured losses can be substantial. Indeed, it is estimated that 70% of companies 
cease trading after suffering a fire, and yet the vast majority of fires can be readily avoided if basic 
safety precautions are followed. 
 
An emergency in a building can develop from a number of causes including fire, bomb threat, release 
of chemical, biological or radioactive material, gas leakage, civil disorder, or structural fault. A prompt 
and organised response by occupants in such an emergency is essential for the welfare of its 
occupants 
 
The local fire authority and the corporate insurers are, in most cases, the two organisations who will 
have most influence over the organisation’s fire safety standards. Fire authorities historically exercise 
control primarily through the issue of fire certificates for certain categories of premises; they are 
primarily interested in the risk to human life in the event of a fire. Insurance companies are primarily 
concerned with the potential financial effects of a fire, and will therefore pay close attention to the fire 
prevention measures and fire fighting systems that the building has in place.  
 
The purpose of this policy and information statement is to provide for the establishment and 
maintenance of a system which ensures appropriate preventative measures to minimise the incidence, 
size and spread of fires.  
It also provides for a fire-safe environment for all persons at Hyndburn Borough Council and 
establishes proper emergency evacuation procedures.  
 
When followed it will minimise risk to personnel and limit loss due to fire damage of property and 
contents.  
 
OBJECTIVES The objectives of this policy are: 
 

 To safeguard all persons on Hyndburn Borough Council premises from death or injury in the event 
of a fire or associated explosion. 

 To minimise the risk of fire and to limit the spread of fire. 

Page 25



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 To minimise the potential for fire to disrupt normal council duties, damage buildings and equipment 
and harm the environment. 

 
APPLICATION 
 
This policy applies to all persons on Hyndburn Borough Council property and in particular to staff and 
managers who have a duty placed upon them to actively monitor the implementation of this policy. 
 
POLICY 
Hyndburn Borough Council will comply with the all other fire safety legislation and standards.  
 
 Hyndburn Borough Council will ensure: 

 That adequate means of escape in case of fire exist for all persons on HBC premises. 

 That all means of escape are correctly maintained, kept free from obstruction and available for 
safe and effective use at all times. 

 That the means of escape have adequate emergency lighting (in case of fire) which will be 
maintained in efficient working order.  

 That adequate means of giving warning in case of fire exist and are maintained in efficient 
working order.  

 That adequate means for fighting fire are present and are maintained in efficient working order. 

 That appropriate instruction will be given to all persons on evacuation procedures. 

 That effective management procedures are in place to respond to and deal with the aftermath 
of a fire. 

 That appropriate fire training is given to designated staff who have an active role in the 
implementation of fire precautions.  

 That all premises owned or occupied by Hyndburn Borough Council are subjected to a fire risk 
assessment and that where risks are identified action is taken to implement appropriate control 
measures.  

 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
The nominated Building Manager is responsible for ensuring that a fire risk assessments for the 
building as a whole paying particular attention to communal areas. The Building manager is also 
responsible for ensuring that fire risk assessments are carried out by departmental Managers, and to 
ensure that the significant finding of the building / departmental fire risk assessments communicated to 
those using the building. 
 
The Building Manager must also appoint suitable responsible persons such as Fire / Evacuation 
Marshals etc to undertake all necessary fire arrangements and procedures 
 
Service Heads and Senior Managers are responsible for ensuring fire risk assessments are carried out 
for the area or part of building under their control. To ensure that the findings of the fire risk 
assessment is issued to the nominated Building Manager. 
 
The Senior Managers and Supervisors personnel with management responsibility shall ensure that all 
local precautions and procedures are followed and that persons under their responsibility are trained 
and given adequate instruction in the case of fire. 
 
Staff must comply with all instructions given to them in regard to fire safety and any other fire 
procedures as required . 
 

Page 26



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

Staff must also report any observed shortcomings in fire precautions to their immediate management. 
Contractors working on behalf of, or on property owned by, Hyndburn Borough Council must comply 
with the Fire Safety Policy and obey all instructions given to them in regard to fire safety. They must 
also ensure that all personnel for whom they are responsible are adequately trained and instructed in 
fire safety procedures and arrangements. 
 
Visitors 
 
Fire alarms: Fire Alarm test may vary within council buildings. Visitors will be notified of alarm testing 
times as appropriate.  
 
The fire alarm is a continuous single pitch note 
 
SMOKING: is not permitted anywhere on these premises. 
 
SIGNING IN: all visitors should report to the Reception on arrival, and sign the Visitor's Book. If issued 
with a Pass at Reception, please return this to the Reception Staff when departing. 
 
FIRE AND EMERGENCY PROCEDURE  
 
“FIRE ACTION” NOTICES ARE DISPLAYED THROUGHOUT THE BUILDING, INDICATING THE 
BASIC ACTION TO TAKE IN CASE OF FIRE, NAMELY:- 
 

ANY PERSON DISCOVERING A FIRE 
 

1. Sound the alarm. 
2. Call the Fire and Rescue Service (dial 999) 
3. Attack the fire where possible (If Safe to do so) using the appliances provided 
4. If the fire cannot be easily extinguished, leave the building and report to the assembly point. 

 
 

ON HEARING THE ALARM 
 

1. Evacuate the building immediately using the normal or emergency escape routes. 
2. Close all doors behind you 
3. Do not stop to collect personal belongings. 
4. Do not use the lifts. 
5. Report to the assembly point. Do not leave until a roll-call has been carried out. 
6. Do not re-enter the building until the designated person has stated that it is safe to do so. 

 
NB The following notes have been prepared to explain more fully the basic guidance given above:- 
 
1. DISCOVERY OF FIRE OR SUSPECTED FIRE 
 
 Any member of staff who discovers a fire, or has reasonable grounds for suspecting that a fire 

exists in the building should:- 
 
 a) Raise the alarm, operate the nearest fire alarm call-point or shout to colleagues 
 b) call the Fire and Rescue Service by dialling 999 
 c) vacate the building as outlined below:- 

Page 27



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 
  
2. EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 On hearing the fire alarm, all members of staff must:- 
 
 a) Leave the building without delay.  Do not rush, but walk in an orderly fashion along the 

route leading to the nearest fire exit. 
 
 b) Close office doors behind you as you leave.  Do not lock or otherwise secure any doors, or 

this may impede other persons. 
 
 c) Do not return to any office to collect personal belongings.  Do not try to make your way 

against the general flow or personnel, as this will slow down the rate of evacuation, and 
may cause accidents, falls, etc. 

 
 d) Any member of the public visiting the offices must be escorted from the premises by the 

nearest employee, and be requested to wait at the assembly point until a roll-call can be 
taken to check that the evacuation has been completed. 

 
 e) Leave all vehicles on the car-park.  Do not attempt to remove them. 
 
 f) Do not attempt to deal with a major fire using a portable extinguisher.  If you are in any 

doubt, vacate the building and leave it to the Fire and Rescue Service. 
 

g) On reaching the assembly point, a roll-call will be taken using the information supplied by 
the named tag board and the visitors book.  Members of staff, visitors, etc. must remain at 
the assembly point until authorised by the Fire and Rescue Service to return to their 
workplaces. 

 
h) Please comply with any requests made by Fire Marshalls who will check ‘their area’ of the 

building on leaving to make sure it has been vacated. 
 
 
3. SMALL FIRES 
 
 If the fire is small and can be easily dealt with using the portable extinguishers/appliances 

supplied throughout the buildings, then staff may do so, provided they are satisfied that the 
appliance to hand is suitable for the type of fire to be extinguished.  If any doubt exists, sound 
the alarm and follow the procedure outlined above. 

 
4. FIRE ALARM CALL-POINTS 
 
 There are manual call-points distributed throughout the building.  They are operated by pushing 

the thumb against the glass in the marked area.  In addition, the building is equipped with 
automatic sensors which will activate the alarm system in the event of fire. 

 
5. DOORS 
 

Page 28



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 When evacuating the building as a result of the fire alarm sounding, all doors should be closed 
in order to prevent the spread of smoke throughout the building, and also to minimise the 
amount of air available to the fire.  Certain doors are fitted with self-closing devices, cold smoke 
seals and/or intumescent strips.  Under no circumstances should these doors be wedged or 
fastened in the open position for any reason whatsoever.  They are designed to withstand the 
effects of fire and smoke in order to keep the exit routes clear for the time taken to evacuate the 
building.  Doors should not be secured or locked in the closed position either - there may be 
someone left in the building after you have effected your escape, and locked doors will hamper 
the Fire Bridge in dealing with the fire. 

 
 Remember - the time taken to close the doors could prevent a small fire from becoming a major 

incident. 
 
6. EXIT POINTS FROM THE BUILDING 
 
 Whichever exit you use will be dictated by the position of the fire, and your own location when 

the alarm is sounded.  Wherever you are, make you way quickly and quietly along the nearest 
signed exit route to meet at the assembly point. 

 
7. ASSEMBLY POINT 
 
 The assembly point for all staff and visitors differs from building to building (see Fire Risk 

Assessment for details).   The roll-call will be held at that point. All staff must be aware of the 
location of their assembly point respective to the building they work in. 

 
8. FIRE PREVENTION 
 
 Should you become aware of any fault or condition which, in your opinion, could present a risk of 

fire, inform your Section Head immediately. 
 
9. GENERAL 
 
 The fire alarm system is tested regularly and will sound for at least five seconds.  In such 

instances, the alarm signal should be ignored, but at any other time, or if the alarm continues at 
the normal test time then prompt and complete evacuation of the building must take place.   

 
 On receipt of any bomb threat, be it verbal or written, warning of the presence or imminent 

detonation of any explosive or incendiary device, the person receiving the threat should make 
the notes required in the guide issued by the Lancashire Constabulary.  Immediately this is 
done, the same person should sound the fire alarm by means of the nearest call-point, and 
evacuate the building.  If, from the details of the threat, there is sufficient time before any risk of 
explosion, the person receiving the threat should notify the local police station prior to leaving 
the building. 

  

Page 29



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 

 

GENERAL ADVICE ON EXPLOSIVE / INCENDIARY DEVICES   
LANCASHIRE CONSTABULARY 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Events both nationally and in Lancashire graphically demonstrate that the realism of ‘terrorism’ exists 
more so in Lancashire now than at any time previously. 
 
These events serve as a reminder that increased vigilance and alertness and heightened awareness 
can prevent a tragedy, your co-operation can achieve this objective. 
 
WHAT SORT OF PEOPLE PLANT BOMBS? 
 
People who make and plant bombs range from mentally unbalanced individuals with personal 
prejudice, often politically founded, to those activists having extreme policies in order to seek their 
aims. 
 
HOW CAN I HELP? 
 
Consider the question of security at your premises and with staff.  Indications are that the activities of 
those noted above will not cease, therefore, a positive rather than complacent attitude is needed in 
order to combat the potential threat. 
 
The information contained in the handbook will help improve your security measures.  Whatever 
inconvenience may be caused initially will be amply compensated for by increased safety for you, your 
staff and customers. 
 

THE TERRORIST MUST NOT SUCCEED 
 

TACKLING THE PROBLEM 
 
BOMBS - WHAT DO THEY LOOK LIKE? 
 
There is no definitive description of what a bomb looks like, they vary in size, shape, colour and design 
as well as composition.  Common to all is that they contain either an explosive substance, incendiary, 
or other content for explosion when dropped or thrown or activated by timing mechanism or remote 
control.  It is important to understand they can be disguised in many ways; concealment in briefcases, 
handbags, carrier bags, holdalls, radio cassettes and even cigarette packets are just a few examples.  
The choice lies in the hands of the aggressor. 
 
The ‘bomb’ may, therefore, fall into a number of categories, three prime examples being:- 
 

Page 30



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

a) CAR BOMB 
 
 Control access to your car park.  The identity of all visitors should, wherever possible, be 

established.  The locking of car park gates should be strictly enforced.  Cursory examination of 
a vehicle to spot the unfamiliar is a valued precautionary measure.  Any doubt, the police 
should be contacted. 

 
b) INCENDIARY DEVICE 
 
 Any form of commercial premises remains a potential target.  Often small in size, an incendiary 

device can be disguised in differing ways.  They are designed to ignite and start a fire.  They 
are small enough to be hidden inside garments and items of clothing, concealed down sides of 
chairs and are generally placed in close proximity to combustible material for obvious reasons. 

 
 Implement search procedures, particularly at closing time.  Any suspicious package or box 

found must be treated with caution - if in doubt contact the police. 
 
c) PARCEL BOMB 
 
 These are designed to explode or ignite when opened. 
 
 If possible, verify the authenticity of the sender.  Indications which may alert you to the 

possibility that a letter or package is an explosive device are: 
  
    i) Grease marks on the envelope or wrapping; 
 
   ii) An odour of marzipan or almonds; 
 
  iii) Visible wiring or tin foil, especially if the envelope or package is damaged; 
 
  iv) The item may feel very heavy for its size; 
 
   v) The weight distribution may be uneven; contents may be rigid in a flexible envelope; 
  
  vi) If a package, if may have excessive wrapping; 
 
 vii) There may be poor handwriting, spelling or typing; 
 
 viii) It may be incorrectly addressed; 
 
   ix) The item may have come from an unexpected source; 
 
    x) There may be too many stamps for the weight of the package; 
 
   xi) Posted from countries or areas that the package may not have been expected 
 

Page 31



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 
 

IF IN DOUBT ISOLATE IT AWAY FROM WINDOWS AND THIN PARTITION WALLS - THEN 
INFORM THE POLICE 

 
In the event of such an occurrence the person handling the letter/package should be readily available 
for interview by the police. 
 
Suspicious objects must not be handled.  They can maim, disfigure or kill. 
 
WHAT STEPS SHOULD I TAKE? 
 
Try to reduce the areas where a bomb may be hidden both inside and outside your premises.  
Accumulation of rubbish presents the ideal opportunity for a device to be planted undetected.  
Receptacles, skips etc. should be emptied regularly, even overgrown shrubbery provides ideal cover 
for an explosive device.  The locking of unoccupied rooms and storage cupboards reduces the number 
of places where a bomb may be hidden. 
 
ACCESS CONTROL TO PREMISES 
 
The most effective access control is an efficient reception area where authenticity of visitors may be 
established and then accompanied once inside.  What is important is that your access control cannot 
be by-passed by unwanted visitors. 
 
Consider recording details of visitors or the issue of personal identity cards. 
 

REMEMBER IF YOUR SECURITY IS LAX TERRORISTS MAY ATTEMPT TO PENETRATE YOUR 
SECURITY SCREEN 

 
PREPARING YOUR STAFF 
 
The responsibility of all security measures should be vested in one person, usually of senior 
management status who should be responsible for:- 
 
a) Preparation and maintenance of a search plan which should be readily available; 
 
b) Preparation of an evacuation plan; 
 
c) Identification of an evacuation assembly area and responsible for re-occupation of the 

premises; 
 
d) Liaison with the police; 
 
e) Staff training. 

Page 32



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

SEARCH PLAN 
 
The objective must be to make sure that the whole building can be checked as quickly and effectively 
as possible. 
 
Division of your building into areas of manageable size for an effective and systematic search to be 
completed in the least possible time.  Cloakroom, stairs, corridors and lifts should not be overlooked, 
neither should car parks and other areas outside the building. 
 
SEARCH METHODS 
 
Priority should be given to searching evacuation routes, areas to which the public have access and any 
other areas thought vulnerable to attack.  Any search must be conducted in a logical and thorough 
manner. 
 
The placing of brightly coloured ‘markers’ near to but not touching the suspect device / package will 
assist the subsequent location by the police and/or bomb disposal experts in unfamiliar surroundings.  
Be vigilant, if anyone finds a suspicious object warn all people to keep away from immediate area - DO 
NOT TOUCH, AND INFORM THE POLICE. 
 
EVACUATION 
 
The purpose is twofold: 
 
a) To evacuate as quickly and efficiently as possible using all available exits. 
 
b) The provision of alternative routes for evacuation so that people can leave the building without 

being placed in danger by passing close to the suspect device. 
 
Ensure that everyone has left the building and no one re-enters until the building is declared safe. 
 
THE THREAT 
 
RECEIVING A BOMB THREAT 
 
Even the best contingency plan will not prevent bomb threats from disrupting normal daily activities.  
However, this disruption can be minimised if the recipient of the threat knows how to handle it. 
 
TELEPHONE THREAT 
 
Most bomb threats are delivered by telephone because the caller: 
 
a) Knows or believes an explosive or incendiary device had been or will be placed and wants to 

minimise personal injuries and/or property damage. 
 
 or 
 
b) Wants to disrupt normal activities by creating anxiety and panic.  (This caller may simply be a 

disgruntled employee wanting the day off). 
 

Page 33



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

EVERY THREAT MUST BE TAKEN SERIOUSLY AND DEALT WITH IN SUCH A WAY AS NOT TO 
CREATE PANIC 

 
A checklist for use of telephonists is attached in order to assist in compiling an accurate record of the 
call.  Record everything being said, especially the exact wording of the threat.  Any background noise 
may help identify the source of the call and it is also important to try and extract as much information 
as possible about the type, size and location of the device.  In addition, the recipient should indicate to 
the caller that the building is occupied and the detonation of the bomb could result in the death or 
serious injury of many innocent people. 
 
WRITTEN THREAT 
 
If a written threat is received all materials, including envelopes and containers, must be saved.  
Contact with these materials should be minimised.  Excessive handling might destroy valuable 
fingerprint evidence.  Handle as little as possible. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
No solution can be offered to eliminate either bomb threats or planted bombs so organisations need to 
implement both good physical security and comprehensive bomb threat response plan. 
 
It is not possible to cover every eventuality in this Advice Booklet but it is hoped that the information 
does help to improve your security methods.  Should you require any further advice please contact 
your local police or, in an emergency, dial 999. 

Page 34



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

BOMB THREAT ACTION TO BE TAKEN ON RECEIPT OF 
 

STAY CALM. Immediately alert someone else if possible but DO NOT PUT DOWN THE HANDSET 
OR CUT OFF THE CALLER.  
 

 Try to keep the caller talking (apologise for the bad line, ask them to speak up etc) obtain as much Info as 
you can 

 Tell the caller which town / district you are answering from. i.e. HBC Accrington, Lancashire. 
 

MESSAGE (Exact words) 

 

 

 

 

 

Ask These Questions 

1) Where is the device right now? 

 

 

2) What time will it go off? 

 

 

3) What does it look like? 

 

 

4) What kind of bomb is it?  (Type of 

explosive / Incendiary)? 

 

5) What will cause it to explode  

6) Why are you doing this? 

 

 

7) Who are you? Name?  

9) What is your telephone number?  

Time of call: / Call Completed  

Record their telephone number  

What to do Next 

 Contact the Police ASAP on 999 

 Contact HBC Safety and Emergency Planning Officer on: 01254 356269 Ext 6269 or 07973 
156577 

 Complete the Bomb Threat Checklist sheet. 

Page 35



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

BOMB THREAT CHECKLIST 
Complete the following as soon as practicable once the caller has hung up 

and Service manager & police have been informed 
 

Time and date of call Length of call 

 

Number at which the call is received including extension number 

 
DETAILS OF CALLER 
 

Man  Woman  Child  Old  Young  Not 
Known 

 

            
Well 
Spoken 

 Irrational  Taped  Foul  Incoherent  

 

Calm  Crying  Clearing 
Throat 

 Angry  Nasal  Slurred  

            

Excited  Stutter  Disguised  Slow  Lisp  Accent  
            

Rapid  Deep  Familiar  Laughter  Hoarse  Confident  

 
If the Voice sounded familiar, whose did it sound like? 
 
Background Noises 
 

Street 
Noises 

 House 
Noises 

 Animal 
Noises 

 Crockery  Motor    

            

Clear  Voice  Static  PA 
System 

 Booth    

            

Music  Factory 
Machinery 

 Office 
Machinery 

       

 
Other (Specify) 
 
ANY OTHER INFORMATION 
 

PERSON RECEIVING CALL 
NAME  (Please Print) 
 

 

JOB TITLE: 
 

 

SIGNATURE 
 

 

 

Page 36



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

GUIDANCE FOR DEALING WITH SUSPICIOUS PACKAGES 

 

SUSPICIOUS PACKAGES INCLUDING THOSE POTENTIALLY CONTAINING BIOLOGICAL OR 
CHEMICAL SUBSTANCES (E.G. WHITE POWDER) OR IMPROVISED EXPLOSIVE DEVICES OR 
OFFENSIVE SUBSTANCES 

 
Office Staff need to be continually aware of suspect packages being received or found within the 
authority. Staff can be reassured that incidents of this nature are extremely rare. The guidance in this 
document has been produced following Health and Safety Executive, Home Office and the Lancashire 
Constabulary advice. 
 
The document is to be used as a summary measure for handling post and suspicious packages It will 
take you through the sensible steps, which can be used to minimise the risk of exposure and the 
possibility of harm. 
 
1. GENERAL MAIL HANDLING 

 Checking and opening of post should preferably be carried out in the designated post rooms 
or post opening areas. 

 Remember any post / packages will have undergone some fairly rough handling by the post 
office therefore it should be in a stable condition until opened. 

 Ensure the suspicious packages containment box is in place. 

 Screen post for and Look out for suspicious envelopes or packages (see 2 below for some 
things that should trigger suspicion). 

 If you are in any doubt do not open, place item in the containment box.  

 Open all mail with a letter opener or other method that is least likely to disturb contents. 

 Open packages / envelopes with a minimum amount of movement. 

 Do not blow into envelopes. 

 Do not shake or pour out contents. 

 Keep hands away from nose and mouth while opening mail. 
 

2. SOME ITEMS THAT CAN TRIGGER SUSPICION 

 Discoloration, crystals or surface contamination, strange odours or oily stains 

 Envelope with powder or powder-like residue 

 Excessive tape or string 

 Unusual size or weight given size 

 Lopsided or oddly-shaped envelope 

 Postmark that does not match return address 

 Excessive postage 

 Hand-written, block-printed or poorly-typed addresses 

 Incorrect titles 

 Title but no name 

 Mis-spellings of common words 

 No return address 

 Addressed to individual no longer with organisation  

 Evidence of above together with restrictive endorsements such as “Personal” or “Confidential” 

Page 37



Hyndburn Borough Council 
Health & Safety Policy and Procedures 

Issue 2                             November 2013  Produced by Paul Fleck 

 
GENERAL MAIL HANDLING – WHAT TO DO 
 
3. IF YOU BELIEVE YOU HAVE RECEIVED A CONTAMINATED PACKAGE 

 Remember any post / package will have undergone some fairly rough handling by the post 
office therefore should be in a stable condition until opened. 

 Do not open, place item in the containment box or sealable plastic bag 

 Do not touch the package further or move it to another location 

 Shut windows and doors in the room and leave the room, but keep yourself separate from 
others and available for medical examination 

 Switch off any room air conditioning system 

 Notify your Manager and the Safety & Emergency Planning Officer. 
 

4. THE LINE OR SERVICE MANAGER WILL 

 Notify Police  

 Arrange for all air conditioning systems to be switched off 

 Arrange for all fire doors in the building to be closed 

 Arrange for all windows in the rest of the building to be closed 

 Cordon off the immediate area 

 If there has been a suspected biological / chemical contamination, ensure that personnel 
outside the room are evacuated as soon as possible and ensure individuals in the 
contaminated room are evacuated to an adjacent unoccupied room away from the hazard. 

 
5. IF YOU FIND A SUSPECT PACKAGE OUTSIDE A BUILDING 

 DO NOT TOUCH IT OR MOVE IT 

 Inform your Manager, Safety and Emergency Planning Officer or the Police, clearly stating 
why you believe a biological/chemical material is involved  

 
6. IF ANYONE BELIEVES THEY HAVE BEEN EXPOSED TO BIOLOGICAL/CHEMICAL MATERIAL 

 Possible signs that people have been exposed will be streaming eyes, coughs and irritated 
skin. Seek immediate medical advice.  

 Remain calm 

 Do not touch eyes, nose or any other part of the body 

 Wash your hands in ordinary soap where facilities are provided, but staff movement outside 
the contaminated area should be avoided as much as possible 

 Notify your Manager, Safety & Emergency Planning Officer or the Police 

 All persons exposed to the material must avoid contacts with other people 

 Other people should immediately move away from the incident and assemble at a safe 
distance. 

 
7. CONTACT DETAILS 

  Police on  999 

  HBC Safety and Emergency Planning Officer on:  01254 356269 Ext 6269 or 07973 
156577 

Page 38



 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

DATE: 24 July 2015 

REPORT OF: Cllr Kerry Molineux, Chair of the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Chair of the Reducing Poverty Scrutiny Panel 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Reducing Poverty – Update from the Chair  

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To Update the Committee on the outcome of the report submitted to Cabinet by the 

Reducing Poverty Panel, appointed by this Committee. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committee notes the report; 
 
2.2 That the Committee notes the positive outcomes associated with the Task and Finish 

Scrutiny Model, and considers a potential topic for this year for the formation of a 
Scrutiny Panel. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 It is important that when recommendations are made to Cabinet from this Committee, 

that feedback is submitted. Although it is a right of this committee to receive responses 
from Cabinet to reports of Overview and Scrutiny, this report is not a direct response 
from Cabinet. 

 
3.2 Appendix 2 was submitted to Cabinet for approval at its meeting on 3rd December 

2014. Due to the in depth nature of the recommendations, Cabinet requested more 
time to fully understand the report before formally responding to each 
recommendation, however, it should be noted that the report was described as an 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7.



 

excellent piece of Scrutiny by the Cabinet, and the Portfolio Holder was keen to 
implement as many of the recommendation as was feasible. 

 
3.3 Since the Cabinet meeting, the Chair, Portfolio Holder and Overview and Scrutiny 

Officer have met several times to discuss how each of the recommendations would be 
progressed. As a result of these discussions, a few of the recommendations have been 
watered down slightly or removed, while the rest have been accepted.  

 
3.4 In normal circumstances, it is not the responsibility of an Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee to implement any recommendations which have been accepted by Cabinet. 
The relevant Portfolio Holder would work with their service to bring forward any actions 
required. However, with the sad passing of Cllr Pam Barton, who has been an 
advocate for and actively involved with Scrutiny over the years, the Chair and the 
Scrutiny Officer have been working to progress these items. 

 
3.5 One area which I am keen to highlight, would be that regarding food bank referral. The 

Panel felt that both front line Council staff and Councillors often engaged with people 
who may need support. We thought they they should know more about local support 
services of this nature and beyond that, be able to make direct referrals to those most 
in need.  After meetings with Community Solutions North West, one of the biggest food 
bank providers in the area, we have now secured an arrangement were Councillors 
and staff can refer people directly for a food parcel. This removes the burden 
associated with signposting residents to other agencies who could then make a referral 
and increases the likelihood that those most in need will get the support they require. 

 
3.6 A 60 minute training session for Councillors will be arranged in the near future to get 

this underway.  
 
3.7 The Chair will meet with the new Portfolio Holder for Health, Cllr Munsif Dad in the 

coming weeks to discuss how the other recommendations can be progressed, and will 
report back to the committee if necessary. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 None directly related to this report 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

Not applicable 

Page 40



 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes of Cabinet on 3rd December 2014  

http://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/site/scripts/meetings_info.php?meetingID=1513 
 
7.2 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 22nd October 2014 
http://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/site/scripts/meetings_info.php?meetingID=1558 

 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
http://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/site/scripts/meetings_info.php?meetingID=1513
http://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/site/scripts/meetings_info.php?meetingID=1558


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Last Meeting
	4. Appointment of Co-optees
	5. Work Programme 2015/16
	6. Scaitcliffe House - Signing In/Out Procedure
	Appendix 1 - Fire Safety Policy and Emergency Evacuation Procedure

	7. Scrutiny Panel (Reducing Poverty) Update

